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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Refex Green Power Limited (Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private
Limited),

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Refex Green Power Limited (Formerly
known as Refex Green Power Private Limited), ("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 3I,2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Indi4 of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 312025, its
Loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements'section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the'Code of
Ethics'issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the cument period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements, 
-o, 

ou. knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard'

Management's Responsibitity for the Ind AS Financial statements

The Company,s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies A ct,2013 (,,the Acf ') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows ofthe Company

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting

standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder'

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that

give a hue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's

atiiiry to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

usingthe going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process'

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate,they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
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. Identi$ and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3XD of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

ofsuch controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conolude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the frnancial statements oro if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modiff our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Ind AS financial statementso

including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identifr during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said
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2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and.belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(0 In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March

31,2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness

of such controls, refer to our separate Report in o'Annexure A" to this report; Our report

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the

company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided.

Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 , in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed Contingent liabilities and its Commitments and the impact on

its financial position - refer note no.3l to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 'Intermediaries', with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company'Ultimate Beneficiaries'



or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

ii. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable
for the year under consideration.

vi Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company
has used accounting software systems for maintaining their respective books of account for
the financial year ended March 31,2025 which have the feature ofrecording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of audit, we have not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record

retention.

FoTABCD&CoLLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 016415

Vinay Kumar
Membership No: 2l
Place: Chennai

Date: 07th May 2025i.
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"Annexure - Ao' to the Auditorst Report

(Referred to in paragraph2(f) under oReport on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our

report to the members of Refex Green Power Limited (Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private

Limited) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act,20L3 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Refex Green Power Limited

(Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private Limited) ("the Company") as of March 31,2025, in

conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit" We conducted our audit

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the

Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial conhols over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS

financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their

operating effectiveness" Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included

obtuining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these

Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

o
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these

Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial

statements includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to

these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference

to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management

overide of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to

these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over

financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating

effectively as at March 3I,2025,based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India

FoTABCD&CoLLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0164155/5

Vinay Kumar
Membership No: 214
Place: Chennai,
Date: 07th May 2025.
UDIN: 252l4s20BMIHQQ4s3 9
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'6Annexure - Btt to the Independent Auditorst Report

(Refened to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our

report to the members of Refex Green Power Limited (Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private

Limited) of even date)

l. Fixed Assets:

a) i. The Company does not have any fixed assets for the curent year as on balance sheet date.

ii. The Company does not have any intangible assets.

Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3, clause I (a) to (d) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property

under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made

thereunder.

2. Inventories:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on the

basis of our examination of the books of account, the Company does not have any

inventory as on 31't March,2025.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore

rupees, in aggregateo from banks or financial institutions on the basis'of security of current

assets at any point of time during the year.

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security and granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firmso Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

a) The Company has provided loans and guarantee (in respect of loans) during the year and

details of which are given below:

(Rs.In'000)

Guarantees Loans

a
J.

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates

- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others

3,95,352

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect ofabove cases

- Subsidiaries

- Holdingcompany
- Associates

1,38,400 4,04,638

"i1Ktil;'!t
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b) The investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
the above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

c) The terms of arrangement have not been stipulated for the repayment of principal and
interest for the inter corporate loans.

d) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment terms and there has been no
demand for such loans, no question of overdue amounts will arise in respect of the loans
granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no such loan has

fallen due during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

0 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, The company has
granted loans and advances in nature of loans without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of section

185 and section 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions

of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 rcgarding to the deposits

accepted from the public are not applicable.

6, The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub - section

(l) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company. However, the

overall turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crores in the preceding financial
year. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3, clause (vi) is not applicable to the company.

7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customso duty of exciseo value added
tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
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b) Details of statutory dues refened to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on

account of dispute are given below:

(Rs. In'000)

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196I (43 of 1961).

9.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

during the year. The terms and conditions for repayment of Inter Corporate Borrowings and

payment oi interest thereon have not been stipulated. According to the information and

explanations given to us, such loans and interest thereon have not been demanded for
repayment during the relevant financial year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not obtained any new term loans during the year.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised

on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company

has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures, or associate companies.

0 On an overall examination of the financial statements ofthe Company, the Company has not
specifically taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the specific
obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

10.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the company

has not made any preferential allotment or private placement during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

11.

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been

Name of the Statute
Nature of the

Dues
Amount

(Rs.)

Period to
which

the amount
relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

Income tax Department Income tax dues 5.43.391 A.Y 2020-21 Writ Petition - Madras Hieh Court

"ii.Nt'lAl'14, itNo16415s
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b) No report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
form ADT-4 as prescribed under the rule 13 ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 with the central governmen! during the year and up to the date of this report.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause(xii) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of The Companies Act, 2013 and the details

have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as part
of our audit procedures.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of section I92 and clause(xv) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.

16.

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause(xvi) o(a),
(b)and (c) the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the
Group. Accordingly, parcgtaph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.40,703 in the current financial year and Rs.25,326
in the immediately preceding financial year

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xviii)

of the Order is not applicable.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealization of financial assets and payment of financial

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit

report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that

this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting

is based on facts up to the date ofaudit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

'.[Rti$\13
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20.

a. In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (xx) a) of the Order is not applicable;

b. There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be

transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub-section (6) of section 135

of Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (xx) b) of the Order is not
applicable.

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

FoTABCD&CoLLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l 6415S/S0001 88

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat-
Membership No: 214520
Place: Chennai

Date: 07th May 2025.
UDIN : 2521 4 520BMIHQQ45 3 9
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REFSX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private Limited)
CIN: U401 08TN2019PLCL323L9
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Notes

ASSETS
NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Financial Assets

Investments

[,oans
Total Non-Current Assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Financial assets

Contract Assets

Other Cunent Assets

Total Current assets

Total Assets

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equrty Share Capital
Other Equity
Total Equity

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables Due to
Micro and Small Enterprises

Other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions

Other Cunent Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

See notes to the Financial Statements: l-38
As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0 I 64 l5S/S000 I 88
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5

As at
31-Mar-25

(Rs in 000)

As at
3l-Mar-24

26,28,817

73,902
2628,797
4,04,638

30.33.435 27,02,719

6

7

8

9

653

14430
8,000

20,855

1,803

4,597

2,219

43,937 8,607

30"77,372 27,11,326

l0
l1

t2
l3

100

11,32,871

r00
t2 57

12,03,457ll,32197l

19,09,755

293
14,96,873

819

19,10,049 14,97,691

14

l5
t6
t7

48

4217
29,685

109

294

205
125

e286
86

476

34,353 178
15.07.869

I
19,44,401
30,77,372 27,11,326

r Refex Green Power'&4 Limited

Vinay
Membership No: 214520
Place: Chennai
Date:07.05.2025

Kumar
Director

07966090)

Tapas Kum Das
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennai

Uthayakumar Lalitha
Director
(DN:07331094)

Company Secretary (ACS - 39099)
Place: Chennai
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REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private Limited)
CIN: U40108TN2019PLC132319
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3lst March 2025

Notes

INCOME
Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Total Income

EXPENSES
Employee Benefit Expenses

Finance Costs
Other Expenses

Total expenses

Profit / (Loss) Before tax
Less:Tax Expenses

Cunent Tax
Tax of earlier years

Defened Tax
Profit / (Loss) for the Period
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations, net
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. l0
each)

Basic / Diluted (in Rs.)

Weighted average equity shares used in computing
eamings per equity share

Basic / Diluted

See notes to the Financial Statements: l-38
As per our report ofeven date For Refex Green Power Limited
FoTABCD&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l64l5S/S0001 88

Kalpesh Kumar
Managing Director
(DIN: 07966090)

For the year Ended
31-Mar-25

12,416

(Rs in '000)

F'or the year Ended
3l-Mar-24

l8
19

20

21

22

lt 129
47,000
25,635

23,545 72,635

6,947

70,690
16,623

7,723

77,395
41.467

94,259 1,26.595

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner
Membership No:214520
Place: Chennai
Date:07.05.2025

23

26

Tapas Das
Chief FinancialOfficer
Place: Chennai

Uthayakumar Lalitha
Director
(DIN:07331094)

Vinay
Company Secretary (ACS - 39099)
Place: Chennai

(70,714)

(70,714)

(53,949)

(84e)

(53,100)

228
(70,486) (53.100)

(7,049)

10,000

(5,310)

10,000

c\

CHENNAI.I4
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REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green Power Privote Limited)
CIN: U40 108TN20 19PL Cl323l9
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3lst March 2025

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit/ (tnss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Provision for Gratuity & L,eave encashment

[,oss on dimuntion in value of investments

Advance written off
Interest income

Interest expense

Operating loss before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets :

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade Receivables

Contract Assets

Other Current Assets

Provisions

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities
Other Cunent Liabilities
Cash used in operations
Less: Income Tax Paid

Net cash flow from / (used) in operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities

lnan repayment Received / (Advanced)

Capital Work in Progress

Withdrawal/ (Investment) in Fixed Deposit
(lnvestment) / Proceeds from redemption of Investments
Interest received

Payment to gratuity fund
(Additions) / WitMrawal of Investment from LLP

Net cash flow from / (used) investing activities

See notes to the Financial Statements: 1-38

As per our report ofeven date

For the year ended

31 March 2025

(Rs in '000)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

(70,714)

516

(ll,l29)
70,690

(53,949)

483

1,319

461

(25,610)

77,394
(10,637) 96

(s,ooo)

(18,637)

(7el)
3,935

(s7)
(1 82)

1,53,692

8,029

462

(3 3)

s19

(34,370)
(23,737)

1,39,028

27,514

(34,370) 1,11,513

(3,30,736) 3,88,436

708
g,ggg

76,913
1,88,536

(100)
(2,49,923)

(t)
20

1,287

(3,29,430) 4,14,559

FoTABCD&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 016415S/S0001 88

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner
Membership No: 214520
Place: Chennai
Date:07.05.2025

For Refex Green Power Limited

Kalpesh Kumar
Managing Director
(DIN:07966090)

Tapas Das
Chief FinancialOfficer
Place: Chennai

Uthayakumar
Director
(DIN:07331094)

Vinay rwal
Company Secretary (ACS - 39099)
Place: Chennai

4
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REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green power private Limited)
CIN: U40 108TN20 I 9PL Ct323t9
cash Flow statement for the year ended 3lst March 2025 (contd.)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings
Interest Paid

Dividend paid on preference shares
Net cash flow from / (used) in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C )
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement

Cash on hand

Balance with banks in Current Account
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance sheet

(Rs in '000)

4,12,993
(50,233)

(2,64,909)

Q,60,930)
(146',)

3,62,650

(1,150)

1,903

653

188

1,615

1,903

6s3 1.,903

653 I,903
653 1,803

Notes:-

l.The cash flow statement is prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013.
2. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivarents with the Balance sheet.
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-3g

As per our report of even date For Refex Green Power Limited
FoTABCD&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l64l5S/S000 I 88

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner
Membership No: 214520
Place: Chennai
Date:07.05.2025

Kalpesh Kumar
Managing Director
(DIN: 07966090)

Tapas Das
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chennai

Uthayakumar Lalitha
Director
(DIN: 07331094)

\

Place: Chennai
Secretary (ACS - 39099)
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REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green power privute Limited)
CIN : U40 1 08TN20 I 9PL C1323 19
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3lst March 2025

(Rs in '000)

A. Equity Share Capital

B. OTHER EQUITY

See notes to the Financial Statements: l-38
As per our report ofeven date For Refex Green Power Limited
FoTABCD&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l64l5S/S0001 88 l"J-"l--.+

Kalpesh Kumar
Managing Director
(DIN:07966090)

Uthayakumar Lalitha
Director
(DIN: 07331094)

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner
Membership No:214520
Place: Chennai
Date:07.05.2025

\
Tapas ar Vinay
Chief FinancialOfficer
Place: Chennai

Company Secretary (ACS - 39099)
Place: Chennai

Particulars No ofShares Amount
shares NR 10 each subscribed and

As at 31st March 2023 10,000 100
Issue of shares

As at 31st March2024 10.000 100
Issue of shares

As at 31st March 2025 10.000 100

Particulars Retained
Earnings

Equity Component
of Compound
Financial
Instrument

Items of Other
Comprehensive
income

Total equity
attributable to
equity holders

As at 31 March 2023 (43.99r) 13.00.595 12,56,604
Add: Profit/(t oss) for the year (53. l 00) (s3,100)
I-ess: Dividend - Preference Shares 146 146
As at31 Nlarch2024 07.238) 13,00,595 12,03,357
Add: Profit(Lnss) for the year 00,714) (70.714\
Add: Other Comprehensive income 228 228
As at 31 March 2025 (1,67,952\ 13.00.595 228 ll,32,g7l

GHENNAt.l4
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REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED
(Formerly known as Refex Green Power Private Limited)
CIN : U40 I 08TN20 I 9PL Cl323l9
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

1. Corporate Information
REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED (Formerly known as Refex Green power private limited) was incorporated in
October 20lghaving its registered office in Chennai, registered underthe Companies Act2013. The company has

changed its name from Refex Green Power Private Limited to REFEX GREEN POWER LIMITED with effect from
1Otr May 2023.The entity is engaged in the business of rendering engineering, procurement, and construction services
in respect of solar power plants, setting up of solar power plants and generating power and also rendering other related

services required in connection with the generation, supply and distribution of electricity through both conventional
and non-conventional means.

2, Basis of Preparation

a. Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as

amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Details of the Company's material accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and
- share-based payments measured at fair value.

c. Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
rcalization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose

of classification of its assets and liabilities as curent and non-current.

d. Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the cunency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional curency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

e. Use of estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognized prospectively.
Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized
in the financial statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment are reviewed
on an on-going basis and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

f. Measurement of fairvalues
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes

into the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and /or disclosure

financial statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have some to
fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.



* of the

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

1,2 or 3 based on
of the inputs to the

3.

- Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date.
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level l, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Material Accounting Policies

a. Revenue Recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are rendered to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. Ifthe consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transfening the goojs to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constriined until it is hi-ghly irobable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative reuenu-e recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amountJ oi castr and which are subject io an insignificant
risk ofchanges in value, and bank overdrafts.

c. Income Taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in defened tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and unused tax losses.
The curent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better piediction
of the resolution of the uncertainty.
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial staiements. Defeled income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting piofit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Defened
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset ls realized or the defered
income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and for unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the sameiaxation authority. dunent tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
tealize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously within the same jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Cunent and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to item
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this cas-e, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

and Contingencies
recognized when the Company has a present obligati on (legal or constructive) AS result of

that the Company
obligation.

will be required to settle the obligation, and a rel able estimate can be
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The amount recognized as a provi slon IS the best esti mate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation

al the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a

provision IS measured uslng the cash flows estimated to settle the present obl igation, ts carrylng amount 1S the present

value ofthose cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money 1S material) The discount rate used to determ lne

the present value 1S a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability The lncrease 1n the provision due to the passage of time 1S recognized AS interest expense. A

disclosure for contingent liabilities 1S made where there IS possible obligation or a present obligation that may

probably not requlre an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with

reasonabl e certainty When there IS a possr ble or a present obligation where the likel hood of outflow of resources IS

remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
provision for onerous contracts i.e., contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under

the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic Lenefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an

obligating event, based on reliable estimate of such obligation'

e. Earnings Per Share
(i) Basic earnings per share 

red hv dividins: - the o ners of the company - by
Basic eamingi p.t share is calculated by dividing: - the profit attributable to ow

the weightejuu.rug. number of equity shares Jutstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elementi in equity rhar.r issued during the year and excluding treasury shares'

(ii) Diluted earnings Per share
Diluted earningi per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take

into account:
- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares'

- potentially issuable equity shares, tirat could potentially dilute basic earnings per share' are not included

in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when they are anti-dilutive for the period presented'

f. Cash Flow Statements
cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of

transactions ofa non-cash natrire, any deferrals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash receipts or payments and

item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities of the Company ate segregated'

g. Financial Instruments:
ih. Corpuny recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes aparty to the contractual provisions

of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade

receivables which are initially measured at transaction priJe. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are

added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to_the acquisition of financial

assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss'

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either t-hrough other comprehensive income, or through profit or

loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of

the cash flow.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive

income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held'

For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an iffevocable election at

the time of initial ,..ognition to account for the 
"quity 

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income'

The Company reclasslfies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets

changes.
Recognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets

commits to purchase or sale the financial asset.

are recognised on trade-date, the date bn which the ComPanY
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Subsequent Measurement
Debt Instruments
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash.flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ouistanding.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effettive interest rate method. ,{ny
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as a
separate line item in statement of profit and loss.
ii) Financial Assets at Fair value through other comprehensive Income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting iontractual caih flo*s and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speiified dates to cash flows that arJ solely paym.n1. of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocabte itectlon for its
investments which are 

_classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income based on its business model.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which aie recognized in profit and ioss. WfrJr the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recogniied in OCi is reclassified from equity to the
statement of profit and loss and recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from theie inancial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit or Loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss-and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the statem--eni of profit and loss in thf period
in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

iv) Equity Instruments
The Company subsequartly measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following ihe derecognition of the investment. Dividends
fiom such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other incomJ when the C-ompany's right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair value offinancial assets at fair value through p.ont o. loJs are recogniiei in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment lossei) on equity investmeits measured
at FVocI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

v) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs arJmeasured at an imouni equal
to the l2-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case
those are measured at lifetime ECL, as applicable, as the case may be. The amount of ECLs (orieversals, if any) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date io the amount that is requiied to be recognir.A it
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the profit or loss.

vi) Financial Liabilities
Financial liability and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability -i un
equity instrument.
Financial liabilities are subsequently caried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Baiance 

-Sheet 
date, the carrying amounts

approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

vii) Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Asset
A financial asset is derecognized only when
- the Company has transferred the rights to the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receive the
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

asset, but assumes a contractual



Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transfered substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where ihe entity has
not transfeffed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognized.
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
ofthe financial asseto the financial asset is derecognized ifthe Company has not retained control ofthe financial asset.
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognizedto the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Financial Liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

h. Trade Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unl"r,
payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

i. Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognized at fah value, net of transaction costs incurred. Boryowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and thJredemption amount
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the bonowings using the effective interest method. Feei paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabli that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired' The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished ortransferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transfeled or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in Statement ofprofit and loss under other expenses.
Borrowings are classified as cunent liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least l2 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of maierial provision of a long
term loan arrangement on or before the date of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable
on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after tne
reporting period and before approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence
ofthe breach.

-----Space is left intentionally blank---
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4, Investments - Non-Current

Particulars

Investntent in Subsidiaries - Measured at Cost

Investment in Equity Shares
Athenese Energy Private Limited
Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited
Scorch Solar Enerry Private Limited

Refex Sustainability Solutions Limitedr
Singe Solar Energy Private Limited
Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited
Spangle Energy Private Limited
Swelter Energy Private Limited
Taper Solar Enerry Limited
Torid Solar Power Private Limited
Wither Solar Energy Private Limited
Engender Developers Private Limited
Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited

Refex Solar SPV Five Limited2
Refex Renewables SL (Private) Limited*

Venwind Refex Limited3

Total (A)

Face Value
per Share/
Debenture

As at 3l March 2025

No.of Shares Value

(Rs in '000)

As at 3l March 2024

No.of Shares Value

{10
{10
{ r0
<10

{ l0
{10
tl0
{ l0
{10
{r0
<10
tl0
t10
tt0

l0 LkI,
{10

7,400

7,400
7,400

7,400

7,400

7,400

7,400

63,787
'7,400

9,000
10,000

10,000

1,00,000

10,000

74

15,792

15,829

1,4'13

9,294

3,804

5,254

1,85,495

74

1,737

100

49
I,000

30

7,400

1,400
7,400

,00,000

7,400

7,400

7,400

7,400
63,787

7 400
9,000

10,000

4,900

71,762

67,685

3,1 6, 1 87

72,36t
2,34,404

69,012

1,46,70,489

49,428
1 ,40,03,4 I 8

74

t5,792
I 5,829

I,000

1,473

9,294

3,804

5,254

1,85,495

74

l,'137

t00
49

l

2,40,003

5,000 50

2,40,023

Investment in Opfionally Convertible Pretbrence Shares
Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited t l0
Scorch Solar Energy Private Limited < l0
Singe Solar Enerry Private Limited < l0
Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited < l0
Spangle Energy Private Limited < 10

Swelter Energy Private Limited < l0
Torrid Solar Power Private Limited { l0
Wither Solar Energy Private Limited { l0
Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited { 10

Total (B)

Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
Engender Developers Private Limited
Total (C)

{10

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Engender Developers Private Limited
Total @)

{10

Total (E) {A+B+C+D}

Investment - Measured at FWPL
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
Kiln Solar Energy Private Limited**

Investment in Limited Liability Partnership
Sherisha Solar LLP**x
(99.99% Partnership Interest; 100% Economic Intei'est)

Total (F)

TOTAL {E+r}

t l0 1,42,36,787 0,01 1,42,36,787 0.01

14,09,687 14,09,697

14,09,697 14,09,697

71,762

67,685

3,1 6,1 87

72,361

2,34,404

69,012

1,46,70,499

49,428
1,40,03,419

1,53,140

t,44,7'78

62,921

90,885
1,20,484

48,999

I46,705
9,540

1,40,034

9,17,486

I ,53,140
r,44,778

62,92t
90,995

1,20,484
48,999

1,46,705

9,540
1,40,034
g,l7,496

16,62,065 16,621

16,621

16,62,065 16,621

16,621

45,00,000 45,000

_11999-

12Jql10

45,00,000 4s,000

45,000

l2,lg,l30

797 t7

* ct"tEili.t.^.1-14 *
tt t.! 01 5s



,i'l

* During the FY 24-25,the Company invested in 10,000 eqniry shares of Refex Renewable SL (Private) Limited, Sri

Lanka, with a face value of l0 LKR per share (aggregating to 100,000 LKR). The investment was recorded at the exchange

rate prevailing on ths transaction date

** the net worth of Kiln Solar Energy Private Limited is completely eroded and thus the same is fair valued at a nominal

amount,

{"!{' On March 31, 2024,the Company has entered into fifth antendment agreement to the Limited Liability Partnership

Agreement dated November 06,2020 as amended vide first amendment agreement dated November 13,2020, second

amendment agreement wherein the aggregate outstanding loan of Rs. 2,31,033 together with outstanding interest thereon

till March 31,2024 amounting to Rs, 20,209, both aggregating to Rs, 2,5 l,242is converted into capital of SSLLP.

lWith effect from l6th May 2024, the name of the Company was changed from'SIL Mercury Solar Private Limited'to
"Refex Sustainability Solutions Private Limited", Further, with effect from 2l st August 2024,the name was changed from

"Refex Sustainability Solutions Private Limited" to "Refex Sustainabiliry Solutions Limited".
2 Refex Solar SPV five has been incorporated on 4th December 2024
3 Venwind Refex Limited has been incorporated on lgth February 2024,With effect from 17'r' December 2024, the name

of the company was changed from "Refex Green Energy Limited" to "Venwind Refex Limited"

Details of shares and debentures pledged

The Company has pledged the following number of shares and Debentures of subsidiaries with the le nders for borrowings

availed by the respective subsidiaries.
As at As at

Equity shares 31-Mar-25 3l-Mar'24

Name of the Subsidiary
Athenese Energy Private Ijmitecl
Scorch Solar Energy Private Limited
Singe Solar Energy Privaie Lirrriieci

Sourashakthi Energry Private Limited
Spangle Energy Private Limited
Swelter Energy Private Limited
Taper Solar Energy Limited
Torrid Solar Power Private Limited
Engender Developers Private Limited
Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Prel'erence Shares

Scorch Solar Enerry Private Limited
Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited
Spangle Energy Private Limited
Singe Solar Energy Private Limited
Swelter Energy Private Limited
Tonid Solar Power Private Limited
Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited

Optionally Convertible Debentures

Engender Developers Private Limited

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

Engender Limited

Nos.
7,400

7,400
7,400
7,400

7,400
7,400

63,781
'1,400

9,999
4,995

67,685

72,361

2,34,404

3,16,187

69,012

1,46,70,489

1,40,03,418

16,62,065

45,00,000

Nos,

63,781

9,999
4,900

1,40,03,418

16,62,065

000

lr
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As at
3l-Mar-25

5. Loans - Non Current
(Unsecured and Considered Good)

lnans and advances to Related parties

Total
4,04,638
4,04,639

Loans are given for working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of Tyo per annum on the
outstanding amount. (Refer Note 25)

6, Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash on hand

Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts

Total
653

6s3

7. Other Financial Assets

(Rs in'000)
As at

3l-NIar-24

73,902

1,803

1.803

Interest Accrued not due
Rental Deposit
Bank Deposits

Total

8.

9. Other Current Assets
(Uns ecured, C onsidered Good)

Balance with Customs, Central Excise, GST and
State Authorities
EMD
Others#

Total

#Others include Prepaid Expenses, Advances Etc..

10. Share Capital

Authorised share capital
Equity Shares oft 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of{ 10 each

Number Amount
(in 000s)

10,61,79,320 10,61,793
10,61,79,320 10,61,793

10.000 100

13,979

438
14

4,135
438

13

14,430 4,597

Contract Assets

A contract asset is recognized when the company has recognized revenue, but not issued an invoice for payment.
Contract assets are classified separately on the balance sheet and transferred to receivables when rights to payment
become unconditional.

Unapplied Receipts

Total
8,000

8,000

2,626

14,500

3,728

1,561

657
20,855 2,219

As at
3l-Mar-25

As at
3l-Mar-24

Number Amount
(in 000s)

l0 I I 783

783I I 1

10,000 100

10,000 100 10,000 100

+
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a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Eqaity Shares
At the commencement of the year
Shares issued duringthe year
At the end ofthe year

c. Particulars of shareholders holding morc than Sg/o

shares of a class of shares

Equity shares of { l0 each fully paid held by
Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 10,000 100%

10,000 1000h

31-lVIar-25 31-Mar-24
Number Amount

(in 000s)
Number

100 10,000

Amount
(in 000s)

10010,000

10.000 100 10.000 100

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends
and share in the company's residual assets. The equity shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from
time to time after subject to dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll
(not show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company.

On winding up ofthe company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company,
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Number (o/o of total Number
shares)

r0.000

(7o oftotal
shares)

100%
10.000 1000

d, Particulars of shareholding of Promoters

Equity shares of t l0 each fully paid held by
Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited

Number (% of total (o/o of change in
shares) shares during

the year)

Number (Yo of tolal (%o of change in
shares) shares during

the year)

31 March 2025 3l March2024

10.000 l00o/o 0o/o 10.000 100% 0%
10.000 1000

11. Other Equity

Retained Eamings

Items of other comprehensive income
Equity component of optionally convertible preference shares

Total

A. RETAINED EARNINGS

Opening Balance

Add : Surplus/l.oss during the year
Less: Dividend - Preference

Closing Balance

B. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Closing Balance

00io 10.000 1000 0Vo

As at
31-lVIar-25

(in'000s)

As at
3l-Mar-24

(97,238)(1,67,952)

228
13,00,595 13,00,595
ll,32,g7l 12,03,357

(97,238)
(70,714)

(43,991)
(53,100)

146
(1,67,9521 (97,238\

228
228

+



As at
31-Mar-25

13,00,595

(Rs in'000)
As at

3l-N'{ar-24

13,00,595

c. EQUITY COMPONENT OF COMPOUND FTNANCTAL
INSTRUMENT

Opening balance

Add: Shares / debentures issued during the year
Closing Balance

Total (A+B+C)

a Authorised share capital
Preference shares of{ 1000 each 14,gg,g00

13,00,595 13,00.595

LL,32,871 12,03.357

The compound financial instrument relates to the Redeemable Preference Shares ('RPS') issued by the Company

As at As at
31 March 2025 3lMarch2024

Number Amount
(in'000s)

l4,gg,g00

Number Amount
(in'000s)

14,gg,g00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital
Redeembale Preference Shares oft 1000 each

b, Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the
beginning und at the end ofthe reporting period
Redeemab le Prefer e nce S h ar es

At the commencement of the year

Shares issued during the year

At the end of the year

14,99,900

14,99,900 14,99,900 14,99,900 14,99,900

14,61,620 74,61,620 14,61,620 14,61,620

14,61,620 14,61,620 14,61,620 14,61,620

31 IVIarch 2025

Number Amount
(in:000s)

14,61,620 14,61,620

3lMarch2024
Number Amount

(in'000s)

14,61,620 14,61,620

14,61,620 14,61,620 14,61,620 14,61,620

c. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

0.01% Redeemable preference shares were issued in the month of Jan2020 (1461620 Shares @ Rs.l000) pursuant to the
shareholders agreement. These preference shares are redeemable at any time on or before the end of nineteenth year from
the date of issuance at the option of the company. The holders of these shares are entitled to a non-cumulative dividend
0.01%. Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. The preference shares are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly involving their
rights.

3l March 2025 3l N[arch2024, Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5%u' 
shares of a class of shares

Number (Vo of total
shares)

Number (o/o of total
shares)

Refex Holding Private Limited* 14,61,620 100% 14,6r,620 100%
1,4,61,620 l00o 14061,620 1000

*With effect from 30th April2025, the name ofthe company was changed from "Sherisha Technologies Private
Limited" to "Refex Holding Private Limited"

CHENNAI.l4
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As at
31-Mar-25

(Rs in'000)
As at

3l-Mar-24
12. Borrowings- Non-Current

lrter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties
Liability component of Redeemable Preference Shares / OCRPS
Total

16,23,556

2"86.200
12,40,704

t69
19,09,755 14,96,973

Inter Corporate Loans are taken for working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of Bo/oper annum
(P.Y - B% per annum) on the outstanding amount. (Refer Note 25)

13. Provisions - Non-Current

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Total

24

269
54s

274
293 819

14. Trade Payables

Micro and Small Enterprise
Other than Micro and Small Enterprise
Total

48

4,217
205

125
4,265 330

(Refer Note 27) .

15. Other Financial Liabilities - Current

Interest accrued but not due on bonowings
Salary Payable

Audit fee payable

Security Charge Payable
Rent Payable

Total

28,680

466
440

34

66

8,223

557

440

66
29,695 9,286

16. Provisions - Current

Provision For Intemal Audit fee
Provision For Gratuity
Provision For l,eave Encashment

60

23

25

60

26

Particulars
Outstandinq for following periods from due date of payment

Less than
one Year

1-2 years 2-3 years
3 years and

above
Total

As at 31st March 2025
(i) MSME 48 48
(ii) Others 4,217 4,217
Total 4,265 4,265
As at 31st March 2024
(i) MSME 205 20s
(ii) Others t2s t25
Total 330 330

Total 109 86
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17. Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues (GST, TDS, etc.,)
Others

Total

18. Revenue from Operations

Sale of Services

Commision income

Total

19. Other fncome

Interest Income

Other Income

Total

20. Employee Cost

Salaries and wages

Contribution to Provident Funds and Other Funds*
Gratuity and leave Encashment*

Staff Welfare
Total

* (Refer note no,26)

21. Finance Cost
Interest cost

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits

Interest On Statutory Dues

Interest on Financial Liability
Other Bonowing Cost
Total

22, Other Expenses

Advance Wriuen off
Rates and Taxes

Bank Charges

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

loss on Dimunition of Investment
Professional Fees

Manpower Supply Services

Rent

Payment to Auditors
Travelling Expenses

Operations and Maintenance

Legal Expenses

Fines & Penalties

Subscription charges

CTU Connectivity Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

6,182
286
288

191

6,528
313

483

399

As at
31-Mar-25

294

(Rs in'000)
As at

31-Mar-24

263

213
294 476

For the year Ended
3l-Mar-25

For the year Ended
3l-Mar-24

8,704
J 12

12,416

47,000

47,000

11,129 25,610
25

ll,tzg 25,635

6,947 7,723

70,690
39,238

I,420
30,031

77,394
49,453

I,052

26,889

I
70,690 77,395

10,198

876
952
987

281

I,875
7

30

500

750

136

JJ

461

t2t
89

150

1,319

19,144

15,600

876
810

263

64

2,083

488

$

n



For the year Ended
31-Mar-25

(Rs in'000)
For the year Ended

3l-lvlar-Z4
(a) Payment to Auditors

Statutory Audit
Certification and Other Charges

Total

845

107

785

25

9s2 810

(b) Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at
least 2o/o of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities. The Company had paid the CSR liabilities to the Ugamdevi Tarachand Foundations
for the promoting education under Livelihood enhancement project in the year 23-24.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
(b) Amount of expeniture incurred
(c) Shortfall at the end ofthe year

150

150

23. Tax Expenses

Current Tax
Tax of Earlier years

Deffered Tax
Total Income Tax expenses recognised in the current year

(84e)

(84e)

24. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

a.Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period

Profit After Tax

10,000

(70,486)

10,000

(53,100)

Eamings per equity share (of face value of Rs. l0 each)

Basic / Diluted (in Rs) (7,048.64) (5,310.04)

-----Space is left intentionally blank---
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25. Related PartY Transactions

A. List of Retated Partiesr
Name of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of RelationshiP Related

Subsidiary Cornpanies

Renewables & Limited

Sherisha Solar LLP

Private Limitcd
Limited
Limited
Limited

Private

Refex Solar SPV Five limiteclz

Refex Renewables SL (Private ) Limited3

Since Solar Energv Private Limited

Private

Power Private Limited

Solar Limited

Sherisha SPV Two Pri Limited

Limited

Refex Sustainabil Solutions Li 23rd

Stepdown Subsidiaries

Broil Solar te Limited

Kiln Solar Energy Private Limited
Four Private Limited

sha So SPV Three Limited

Horticulture Private Lirnitcd

Fellow Solutions Lirniteda 23

Entities in which shareholders / directors exert significant inJluence

Private

Limited
Relbx lnclustr-ics Limitod

Managerial Personnel
Dinesh Kumar Agarwal (Ccssdtiutt w.e.f 01.06.24)

Taoas Kumar Das - CFO (a\Pointed w.e.| 01.06,24)

Kaloesh Kumar - Managing Director

Directors
Anil Jain

Uthavakumar Ialitha

I List of related parties includes those companies with whom the company has either transacted in the current or the

previous year
i R"fr* Solar SPV five has been incorporated on 4th December 2024'
3 Refex Renewables SL (Private) Limited has been incorporated on27th August 2024'
a With effect from l6th ittay zOi+,the name of the Comiany was changed from 'SIL Mercury Solar Private Limited'

to ,,Refex Sustainability Soiutions Private Limited", Further, with effect from 2lst August 2024,the name was

changed from ,,Refex Slstainability Solutions Private Limited" to "Refex Sustainability Solutions Limited"'
5 Venwind Refex Limited has been incorporated on lgth Febntary, 2024.With effect from lTrh December 2024, the

name of the company was changed from-"Refex Green Energy Limited" to "Venwind Refex Limited"
6 With effect from 30th Apil 262.5, the name of the company was changed from "Sherisha Technologies Private

Limited" to "Refex Holding Private Limited"'

Iir:,, t14
:',',j' .iS
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For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended

March 31, 2025Name of Related PadyNaturt of the Transaction

2,205 3,602Athenese Energy Private LimitedInterest Income
18,628t6,t87Athenese Energy Private LimitedLoan Advanced

35,252 56,132Loan Repayment Received Athenese Energy Private Limited

1,000Broil Solar Enerpy Private LimitedLoan Advanced
1,000Loan Repayment Received Broil Solar Energl Private Limited

69Relbx Solar SPV Five LiruitedLoan Advanced

69Loan Repayment Received Refex Solar SPV Five Limited
227896Engender Developers Private LimitedInterest Income

66Engender Developers Private LimitedInterest Income on debentures

3,92611,297Engender Developers Private LimitedLoan Advanced

3,712EMCO LirnitedCommission income

21,696
Redemption of Optionally
Convertible Debentures(lssue Price) Flaunt Solar Energy Private Lirnited

I,538Flaunt Solar Energy Private LimitedLoan Advanced

4,739Loan Repayment Received Flaunt Solar Energy Private Lirnited

43,704 23,725Flaunt Solar Energy Private LimitedLoan Repaid

1,0 r,0187,200Flaunt Solar Energlr Private LimitedLoan Borrowed
474Loan Advanced Swelter Energy Private Limited

474Swelter Energy Private LimitedLoan Repayment Received

r0JIInterest Income Kiln Solar Enerry Private Limited

t4 t4Kiln Solar E,nergy Private Limitedlnterest Income on debentnres

397180Loan Advanced Kiln Solar Enerry Private Limited

79Refex lndustries LirnitedReimbursement of Expenses

4Salary Advance Refex Renewables & lnfiastructure Limited

462Re lcx Rencwablcs & Iufrastructurc Limitcd
Gratuity/ I.eave Encashment expense

494Interest Income Refex Sustainability Solutions Limited

3,845Refex Sustainability Solutions LimitedLoan Repayment Received

1,8332,012Refex Sustainability Solutions LimitedLoan Advanced

17,203
Redemption of Optionally
Convertible Debentures(lssue Price) Scorch Solar Enerry Private Limited

3,321Scorch Solar Enerry Private LimitedLoan Advanced

4,592Scorch Solar Energy Private LimitedLoan Repayment Received

4,60193,89 1Loan Repaid Scorch Solar Enerry Private Limited

1,23,614 1,21,673Scorch Solar Enerry Private LimitedLoan Borrowed
1,2701,667Interest Income SEI Solar Tech Private Limited

10, t20200Loan Advanced SEI Solar Tech Private Limited

20,2095,932Sherisha Solar LLPInterest Income

25,450Loan Repayment Received Sherisha Solar LLP

3,64,834Sherisha Solar LLPLoan Advanced

682Interest Paid Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited

3,524 4,974Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private LimitedLoan Repaid

1,50034,006Loan Bonowed Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited

16,743 2,038EMCO LimitedInterest Expenses

47,41422,495Refex Holding Private LimitedInterest Expenses

2,07,806Refex Holding Private LimitedInterest Paid

l0Venwind Refex LimitedReimbursement of Expenses

397260Reimbursement of Expenses Refex Holding Private Limited

35,592Refex Holding Private LimitedSupply of Manpower Services

13,40,8025,72,415Loan Repaid Refex Holding Private Limited

3,78,335Refex Holdine Private Limited 9,96,500Loan Bprrowed
30Singe Solar Energy Private LimitedInterest Paid /;11- r,\ 1,609Private LimitedSolarLoan

{o\ 4,72s 712Singe Solar Energy Private Limited /h-7'Loan

\?\\ t7,to2 5,209Loan Borrowddl gf.ql.\t';:: l; Singe Solar Enerry Private Limited flif{

(Rs in '000)

B. Transactions with Related Parties



For thc year cndcd
Marrh 31. 2024

Interest Receivable Athenese Enerev Private Limited 2.380 875

Loan Receivable Athenese Energy Private Limited 24,239 43.304

Interest Receivable Engender Developers Private Limited l. 125 229

Interest Receivable - Debentures Engender Developers Private Limited 6 6

Loan Receivable Engender Developers Private Limited 16.114 4.8t7

Loan Payable Flaut Solar Enersri Private Limited 40.788 77,292

Interest Receivable Kiln Solar Enerpy Private Limited 536 499

Interest Receivable - Debentures Kiln Solar Enerpv Private Limited 13 13

Loan Receivable Kiln Solar Energy Private Limited 577 397

Interest Receivable Refex Sustainability Solutions Limited 4

Loan Receivable Refex Sustainability Solutions Limited 1,833

Loan Payable Scorch Solar Energy Private Limited 1.46.795 r.17 .07 |
Interest Receivable SEI Solar Tech Private Limited 3,930 2,263

Loan Receivable SEI Solar Tech Private Limited 21,03s 20,835

Interest Receivable Sherisha Solar LLP 5.932

Loan Receivable Sherisha Solar LLP 3.39.384

Loan Payable Sherisha Solar SPV Two Private Limited 83.283 52.80 r

Interest Payable Refex Holding Private Limited 28,680 6,18s

Interest Payable EMCO Limited 2.038

Loan Payable Refex Holding Private Limited 6.73.145 2.49.060

Loan Payable Singe Solar Energy Private Limited I 6.869 4.496

Loan Payable 80.564Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited 46,6t7

Loan Pavable Spangle Enersv Private Limited 93,882 60.822

Loan Payable Swelter Energ, Private Limited 61,643 40, I 90

Loan Pavable Taper Solar Energy Limited 3,09,657 3,04,057

Loan Payable /O-HIO; fonid Solar Power Private Limitecl ,r:ti \ 1.t6.s2s 67.797

Interest Receivatle /Q7 \ $\ther Solar Enerpy Private Limited lfbf- Yn\\ s7 247

Loan Receivabl. lt-/ cHENNAI'14 ifiilher Solar Energy Private Limited i i t l / \2\\ 3.2ss 2,7 t6

Redemption of Optionally
Convertible Debentures(lssue Price) Sourashakthi Enerry Private Limited 17,410

Loan Advanced Sourashakthi EnerS/ Private Limited 1,007

Loan Repayment Received Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited 5,714

Loan Repaid Sourashakthi Enerry Private Limited 73,476 I 8,986

Loan Borrowed Sourashakthi Energr Private Limited r.07.423 65,603
Redemption of Optionally
Convertible Debentures(lssue Price) Spangle Energ5r Private Limited 19,124

Loan Advanced Spangle Energy Private Limited 1,222

Loan Repayment Received Spangle Energy Private Limited 3,633

Loan Repaid Spangle Energy Private Linrited 87.559 6,388

Loan Borrowed Spangle Energr Private Limited I,20,619 67,210
Redemption of Optionally
Convertible Debentures(Issue Price) Swelter Energr Private Limited 3,849

Loan Repaid EMCO Limited 3,75,500

Loan Repaid Swelter Energy Private Limited 16,799 1,335

Loan Borrowed Swelter Enerry Private Limited 38,2s2 41,524

Interest Paid EMCO Limited I 8,781

Interest Paid Taper Solar Energy Limited 24,334

Loan Repaid Taper Solar Energz Linrited 14,497 26,322

Loan Borrowed Taper Solar Energy Limited 20,096 76,370

Interest Paid Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 137

Loan Repaid Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 13,968 2,184

Loan Borrowed EMCO Limited I,s5,000 2,20,500

Loan Borrowed Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 63, l 00 61,000

lnterest Income Wither Solar Energy Private Lirnited 223 206

Loan Advanced Wither Solar Energy Private Limited 573 286

(Rs in'000)
B. Transactions with Related Parties

C. Balance as at r end

Nature of thc 'lmnsaction Name of Related Party
For the year ended

March 31 2025

H
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(Rs in'000)
26. Employee Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined
contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs.274.1 I (Year ended 3lst MarCh 2024:
Rs292.46 thousand) towards Provident Fund contributions and Rs.11.92 (Year ended 31st March 2024: Rs.20.53)
towards Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss

A. Gratuity

a. Net asset/ (liability) recognised as at Balance Sheet date

b. Expense Recognised in Income Statement

c. Other Comprehensive Income

d. Expenses Recognized during the period

Particulars As at
3lst March,2025

As at
31st March,2024

Present Value of Obiligation
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus/ (Deficit)
Net asseV (liabilitv)

s36
488
(48)
(48)

645
100

(s4s)
(s4s)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March,2025

For the year ended
31st March.2024

Current service cost
Past service cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined
Benefit Liability / (Asset)
Total Expense Recognised during the period

ts7

39

196,

184

461

645

Particulars For the year ended
31st March,2025

For the year ended

31st March,2024
Actuarial loss/ (gain)

- change in financial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs
assumptions)

Retum on plan assets, excluding amount recognised
in net interest expense

Defined benefit obligations

(242)

(l l)
(228\

26

Particulars For the year ended
31st March,2025

For the year ended
31st March,2024

In Income Statement
h Other Comprehensive Income
Total Expenses Recoqnized during the neriod

196
(228)
Gzl

64s

64s

I



Particulars
(7o change compared to base due to senstivity)

As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st Nlarch,2024

-9.

10.

-8.

0.

FRNo1 641 5s

in Rs, inYo

594 10.

488 -8.

642 16.

7 0.

in Rs in%o

713 10.6%

s88 -8.9%

750 16.3%

64s 0.0%

in Rs. inYo

587 -9.1%

7tt 10.2%

588 -8.

64s 0.Rate - /+l

in Rs. in%o

Decrease Decrease IncreaseIncrease

487

591

472

s36

Discount Rate (- I +l%)
Salary Growth Rate ( / +l%)
AttritionRate ( l+fA

e. Movement in Defined Benefit Obligation

f. Movement in Fair Value of plan assets

g" Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedule III
of the Companies Act,2013

h. ActuarialAssumptions

i. SensitivityAnalysis

Particulars As at
31st March,2025

As at
31st March,2024

Present Value of Obiligation as at the beginning
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Benefits Paid

Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain)
- change in financial assumptions

- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs
assumptions)

Past service cost / others

Present Value of Obilieation as at the end

64s
t57
46

(es)

26

(242)

536

84I

461
645

Particularc
As at

31st March,2025
As at

31st March.2024
Fair Value of plan asset at the beginning
Investment Income

Employer's Contribution
Retum on plan assets , excluding amount recogrised
in net interest expense

Fair Value of plan asset at the end

100

7

370

ll
488

100

100

Particulars As at
31st March"2025

As at
31st March.2024

Cunent Liability (Short Term)
Non-current Liability (Inng Term)
Present Value of Obligations as at the end

23

513

536

545
545

Particulars As at
31st March"2025

As at
31st March.2024

Discount Rate

Rate of salary increase
Retirement Age
Attrition / Withdrawal rate (per annum)
Mortality rate

6.6s%
10.00%

58

10.00%
100% of IALM 2012-14

7.r5%
r0.00%

58

10.00%

100% oflALM 2012-14
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B. Leave Encashment
(Rs in'000)

a, Movement in Defined Benefit Obligation

b. Expense Recognised in Income Statement

c. Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedule III of the
Com Act,2013

d. Actuarial

e. An

Particulars As at
31st March,2025

As at
31st March,2024

Present Value of Obiligation
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus/ (Deficit)
Effects of assets ceiling if any
Net asset/ (liabiliff)

294

(2e4)

Q94l

300

(300)

(300)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March.2025

For the year ended
3lst March,2024

Present Value of Obiligation as at the beginning
Benefit payment
Present Value of Obiligation as at the end
Actual retum on plan assets

Tranfer k/ (Out)
Expense Recognised in Income Statement

300

38

294

32

300

300

Particularc As at
31st March,2025

As at
31st March.2024

Cunent Liability (Short Term)
Non-current Liability (Inng Term)
Present Value of Obligations as at the end

25

269
294

26

274

300

Particulars As at
31st March,2025

As at
3lst March,2024

Discount Rate

Rate of salary increase
Retirement Age
Attrition / Withdrawal rate (per annum)
Mortality rate

6.6s%
10.00%

58

10.00%
100% ofIALM 2012-14

7.15%
10.00%

58

10.00%
100% oflALM 2012-14

As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March,2024Particulars
(!o change compared to base due to senstivity) I)ecrease fncrease Decrease Increase

in Rs. in%o in Rs in%o in Rs. ino/o in Rs. in%o
Discount Rate (- I +l%)
Salary Growth Rate (- I +lo/o)

AttritionRate ( l+l%)
Mortality Rate C l+l%)

322

270

332

294

9.5%

-8.7o/o

t3.0%
0.0o/o

270

32t
274

294

-8.2%

9.2%
-6.9%

0.0%

330

274

342

300

103%
-8.60/o

14.0%

0.0o/o

273

329

279

300

-8.8%

9.9o/o

-6.90/o

0.0%
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27. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006
The management has identified certain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company, and which
quali$z under the definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises
as at 3 I st March 2025 and 3 I st March 2024 have been made in the financial statements based on information available
with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

Particurars As at As at
31 March 2025 3lMarch2024

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 4g 205
accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
the accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the

accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

28. Fair Value Measurements
A. Financial Instrument by Category

As at 3l March 2025 Fair value hiera
Pafticulars

Level II Level IIIFVPL FVOCI Amoftised cost Level I
Financial Assets

lnvestment

Trade Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

lnans
Other Financial Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

74,09,687 12,19,110 14,09,687

653

4,04,638

14,430

l4,og,6g7 16,38,831 14,09,687

Financial Liabilities
Borowings
Trade Payable

Other Financial Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

19,09,755

4,265

29,685

19,43,706

As at 31 March2024 Fair value
Particulam

Level II Level IIIFVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Level I
Financial Assets

Investment

Trade Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

lnans
Other Financial Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

14,09,697 12,19,130 14,09,697

1,803

73,902

4.s87

l2,gg,42l - - 14,09,687

Financial Liabilities
Bonowings

Trade Payable

Other Financial Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

14,96,873
330

6

14,09,687
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Fair value hierarchy
Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. Derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Accordingly, these are classified as level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

B. Financial risk management

The Company business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, foreign cuffency
risks, Interest rate risk and credit risk. The Company's management has the overall responsibility for establishing
and goveming the Company risk management framework. The management is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company risk management policies. The Company risk management policies are established to
identiff and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls,
periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key
risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Board of directors of the Company.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from Company's trade receivables and other financial
assets.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure which is as follows:
(Rs in '000)

Carrying amount
As at As at

31 March 2025 3l March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

653

4,04,638

14,430

1,803

73,902

4,587

4,,19,721 80,291

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks as at the reporting dates which has been
measured on the l2-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

Loans
The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of loan and whetherthere has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occuring on the loan as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

Other financial assets
The Company's financial assets, comprising bank deposits, rental deposits, and interest accrued but not due from
related parties under common management, are exposed to minimal credit risk. Bank deposits are held with high-
rated financial institutions, mitigating counterpafty risk, while rental deposits are placed with pre-approved lessors
based on historical reliability. Interest receivables from related parties are considered low-risk due to the
Company's operational control and established relationship with these entities. The Company actively monitors
counterparty creditworthiness to manage potential risks.

ii. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meetingobligation, associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and m atching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company

to a sufficient variety of sources of funding. Having regards to the nature of the
is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and to optimize the

, from time to time, funds its long -term investment from short-term sources. The

the
the

*



can be roll forward or, if required, can be refinanced from long term bonowings. In addition, processes and

policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at

31 March 2025 &3lMarch2024.
(Rs in '000)

As at 31 March 2025

2 vearc and
l-2 vearc" above

- 19,09,755

Less than
one year

Total

19,09,755

4,265
29,685

Particularc

Bonowings
Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities
Total

Particularc

Bonowings
Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities
Total

Particularc

Borrowings
long term and Short Term Borrowings

l.ess: Cash and Cash equivalants

Adjusted Net Debt

Capital Components
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
Total Capital
Capital and Borrowings
Gearing Ratio 7o

4,265
29,685
33,950 19"09.755 19,43,706

Less than
one year

As at 31 March 2024

2 vearc and
l-2 vears" above

- 14,96,873

Total

14,96,873

330

9,286
330

9,286
9,616 14,96,873 15.06"488

iii. Foreign Currency Risk
The Company's operations are largely within India and hence the exposure to foreign currency risk is very minimal.

29. Capital Management
The Company's objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the return to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce

debt. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions

and the requirements of the financial covenants.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is Adjusted net debt divided by Adjusted net debt plus Total

capital as below.
. Total Capital includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders
. Adjusted Net debt includes borrowings (non-current and current), less cash and cash equivalents (including bank

balances other than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

As at
31-Mar-25

As at
3l-Mar-24

19,09,755
(6lt)

14,96,873
(1.803)

(D 19,09,103 14.95,070

100

11,32,871

100

12.03.357

(iD
(iii=i+ii)

(i/iii)
30,42,074

630h

26,99,528
55"h

11,32,,971 12,03,457

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current year.

CHENNAI.l4
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30. Financial Ratios

The Ratios for the years ended March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 are as follows:

Note: -
Total Debt : long term Borowings + current maturities of long term borrowings
EBITDA: Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
Principal + Interest : scheduled principal repayment of long-term borrowing + Interest Expense (Except Interest
related to ICD)
Working Capital : Current Assets - Cunent Liabilities
EBIT = Earnings before Interest and Taxes.
Capital Employed: Total Assets - Curent Liabilities
Average inventory : Average finished goods + Average stock in trade.

Explanation: -
1. The positive impact in Cunent ratio is due to increase in current assets which includes short term deposits given
for tender purposes
2. The adverse impact in Debt Equity ratio is due to increase in bonowings during the cunent year
3. The adverse impact in Return on Equity ratio is due to increase in losses made during the year
4. As Average trade receivables in cunent year is Nil, Comparison with previous year is not possible
5. The positive impact in Net capital turnover ratio is due to improved working capital as compared to previous year
6. The adverse impact in Net profit ratio is due to decrease in sales in the current year
7. The adverse impact ip Return on Capital employed is due to increase in interest cost during the year
8. The adverse impact in Return on Assets is due to increase in losses made during the year

Particulars Numerato r/Denominator
2024-2s 2023-24 Variance

(in %)Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

a) Cunent ratiol
Current Asset 43.923

1.28
8.594

0.84 51.82%
Cunent Liabilitv 34,353 10,204

b) Debt-Equity ratio2
Total Liabilities (Debt) t9.09.7ss

1.69
14.96.873

1.24 35.s2%
Shareholders Equitv 11,32,97 | 12"03"457

c) Debt service coverage ratio
EBITDA 04) NA

23.445 NA NA
Principal + lnterest

d) Return on equity ratio3
Net Profit (70.714\

-6.24%
(53.1 00)

-4.41% -41.46%
Shareholders Equity 11.32.971 12.03.457

e) Inventory turnover ratio
Net Sales 12,416 NA 47,000 NA NA
Average Inventory

f) Trade receivables turnover ratioa
Net Credit Sales 12,4r6 NA 47,000

0.61 NA
Average Trade Receivables 76.846

g) Trade payables turnover ratio
Net Credit Purchase

NA NA NA
Average Trade Payables 2.298 347

h) Net capital tumover ratio5
Turnover 12,416

1.30
47,000

Qe.te) 104%
Workine Capital 9.571 (1.610)

i) Net profit ratio6
Net Profit (70,714)

(s.70)
(s3.1 00)

(1.13) -404%
Turnover 12.416 47.000

j) Return on capital employedT
EBIT Q4\ 0.00% 23.445 037% -100%
Capital Employed 30,43,020 27,01,123

k) Retum on Assets8
Net Profit (70.714\

-2.44%
(53.100)

-1.78% -37%
Average Total Assets 28,94.349 29,87.507

CHENNAI-14
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31. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

A. The details of loans, guarantee and investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

(D Details of Investments made, and Loans given are disclosed in Note Nos. 4 and 5.

(ii) The Company has given Corporate Guarantee and pledged the shares of Subsidiary for loan availed by
related companies for purchase of plant & machinery. The total Sanctioned amount is Rs.1,38,400.

Name of the Entity
Amount
(in 000s)

Particulars of
Loan, guarantee
and Investments

Purpose for which guarantee

andinvestments are proposed
to be utilized

Taper Solar Enersv Limited I,38,400 Corporate Guarantee Investment in Plant & Machinery

B. Income Tax department completed the assessment under Section 147 and issued Notices of Demand under
Section 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for Rs.5,43,391 (in'000s), pertaining ro AY 2020-21. As aggrieved by

the Assessment order, company has filed a Writ petition before the Hon'ble Madras High Court to quash

impugned order. Further, the company has filed an application for rectification for computational error in tax
computation. On July 1,2024,the Hon'ble Madras High Court granted an interim stay in favour of the company,
The next hearing is expected to be scheduled in due course

(Rs. In'000)
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:

Particulars
As at March

31,2025
As at March

31.2024
In respect of:
a) hcome Tax 5.43.391 s.43.391

Breakup:

32. Segment Reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of rendering other related services required in connection with the
generation, supply and distribution of electricity through both conventional and non-conventional means. Based on

the information reported for the purpose ofresource allocation and assessment ofperformance, there are no reportable
segments in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard l08]Operating Segments', notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15.

33. Ministry of Coqporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standard under Companies
Act, 2013 (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,2025,MCA
has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

34. In order to sirnplify numerical data and enhance the clarity of our presentations, we have rounded figures to the nearest

thousands as per the requirement of Ind AS Schedule III Amendments. While this approach helps to make data easier
to interpret, it can sometimes result in a total mismatch between individual figures and their sum when rounded,

Name of the Statute
Nature of the

Dues
Amount

(Rs.)

Period to
which

the amount
re late s

Forum where
dispute is pending

Income tax Department Income tax dues 5.43.391 A'Y 2020-21 Writ Petition - Madras High Court

*
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35. Additional Regulatory Information

a) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in20l6) (formerly the Benami Transactions @rohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988))
and Rules made thereunder.

b) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has no borrowing sanctioned from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets.

c) Willful defaulter
The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any
govemment authority.

d) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under the Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act,
1956.

e) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section2(87) of the Companies Act,2013
read with Companies (Restriction of number of layers) Rules, 2017.

f) Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

g) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, l96l,that has not been recorded in the books of account.

h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

i) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets

or both during the current or previous year.

j) Other regulatory information Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

36. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses.

At the year-end, the company has reviewed all such contracts and confirmed that no provision is required to be created

under any law / accounting standard towards any foreseeable losses.

37. The Company has accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,

2025,which has a feature of recording audit trail and the same has operated throughout
all relevant transactions recorded in the has been preserved by the
statutory requirements for record retention



38. Previous year's figures are regrouped /
disclosure.

rearranged, where necessary, to confirm to the current year's classification /

See notes to the Financial Statements : l-3g
As per our repoft ofeven date F'or Refex Green Power Limited
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